

Certified Public Accountants, A.C.

SANDUSKY COUNTY-SENECA COUNTY-CITY OF TIFFIN PORT AUTHORITY SENECA COUNTY Regular Audit For the Years Ended December 31, 2016 and 2015

313 Second St. Marietta, OH 45750 740.373.0056 1907 Grand Central Ave. Vienna, WV 26105 304.422.2203 104 South Sugar St. St. Clairsville, OH 43950 740.695.1569 1310 Market St., Suite 300 Wheeling, WV 26003 304.232.1358 749 Wheeling Ave., Suite 300 Cambridge, OH 43725 740.435.3417

www.perrycpas.com



Dave Yost • Auditor of State

Board of Directors Sandusky County-Seneca County-City of Tiffin Port Authority PO Box 767 Tiffin, Ohio 44883

We have reviewed the *Independent Auditor's Report* of the Sandusky County-Seneca County-City of Tiffin Port Authority, Seneca County, prepared by Perry & Associates, Certified Public Accountants, A.C., for the audit period January 1, 2016 through December 31, 2016. Based upon this review, we have accepted these reports in lieu of the audit required by Section 117.11, Revised Code. The Auditor of State did not audit the accompanying financial statements and, accordingly, we are unable to express, and do not express an opinion on them.

Our review was made in reference to the applicable sections of legislative criteria, as reflected by the Ohio Constitution, and the Revised Code, policies, procedures and guidelines of the Auditor of State, regulations and grant requirements. The Sandusky County-Seneca County-City of Tiffin Port Authority is responsible for compliance with these laws and regulations.

are Yost

Dave Yost Auditor of State

August 20, 2018

88 East Broad Street, Fifth Floor, Columbus, Ohio 43215-3506 Phone: 614-466-3340 or 800-282-0370 Fax: 614-728-7398 www.ohioauditor.gov This page intentionally left blank.

SANDUSKY COUNTY-SENECA COUNTY-CITY OF TIFFIN PORT AUTHORITY SENECA COUNTY

TABLE OF CONTENTS

TITLE	PAGE
Independent Auditor's Report	1
Management's Discussion and Analysis	3
Statements of Net Position	6
Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position	7
Statements of Cash Flows	8
Notes to the Financial Statements	9
Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Required by <i>Government Auditing Standards</i>	21

This page intentionally left blank.

313 Second St. Marietta, 0H 45750 740.373.0056

1907 Grand Central Ave. Vienna, WV 26105 304.422.2203

104 South Sugar St. St. Clairsville, OH 43950 740.695.1569

1310 Market Street, Suite 300 Wheeling, WV 26003 304.232.1358

749 Wheeling Ave., Suite 300 Cambridge, OH 43725 740.435.3417



www.perrycpas.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

June 19, 2018

Sandusky County-Seneca County-City of Tiffin Port Authority Seneca County P.O. Box 767 Tiffin, Ohio 44883

To the Board of Directors:

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the **Sandusky County-Seneca County-City of Tiffin Port Authority**, Seneca County, (the Authority) as of and for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Authority's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for preparing and fairly presenting these financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes designing, implementing, and maintaining internal control relevant to preparing and fairly presenting financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to opine on these financial statements based on our audit. We audited in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the financial audit standards in the Comptroller General of the United States' *Government Auditing Standards*. Those standards require us to plan and perform the audit to reasonably assure the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit requires obtaining evidence about financial statement amounts and disclosures. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including assessing the risks of material financial statement misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. In assessing those risks, we consider internal control relevant to the Government's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not to the extent needed to opine on the effectiveness of the Government's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of management's accounting policies and the reasonableness of their significant accounting estimates, as well as our evaluation of overall financial statement presentation.

We believe the audit evidence we obtained is sufficient and appropriate to support our opinions.

www.perrycpas.com

Tax - Accounting – Audit – Review – Compilation – Agreed Upon Procedure – Consultation – Bookkeeping – Payroll – Litigation Support – Financial Investigations Members: American Institute of Certified Public Accountants

Ohio Society of CPAs • West Virginia Society of CPAs • Association of Certified Fraud Examiners • Association of Certified Anti-Money Laudering Specialists •

Sandusky County-Seneca County-City of Tiffin Port Authority Seneca County Independent Auditor's Report Page 2

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Sandusky County-Seneca County-City of Tiffin Port Authority, Seneca County, Ohio, as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 and the changes in its financial position and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require this presentation to include *Management's discussion and analysis*, listed in the table of contents, to supplement the basic financial statements. Although this information is not part of the basic financial statements, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board considers it essential for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, consisting of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries to the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not opine or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to opine or provide any other assurance.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with *Government Auditing Standards*, we have also issued our report dated June 19, 2018, on our consideration of the Authority's internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. That report describes the scope of our internal control testing over financial reporting and compliance, and the results of that testing, and does not opine on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* in considering the Authority's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Perry Manuales CAAJ A.C.

Perry and Associates Certified Public Accountants, A.C. *Marietta, Ohio*

Management's Discussion and Analysis

For the Years Ended December 31, 2016 and 2015

Unaudited

The discussion and analysis of Seneca County, Sandusky County, City of Tiffin Port Authority's (the Authority) financial performance provides an overall view of the financial activities for the year ended December 31, 2016. The intent of this discussion and analysis is to look at the Authority's financial performance as a whole; readers should also review the notes to the basic financial statements and financial statements to enhance their understanding of the Authority's financial performance.

Financial Highlights

Key financial highlights for 2016 are as follows:

Total net financial position decreased \$67,667. This was due to a large decrease in the movement of cars. Operating and non-operating revenues were \$157,290 and operating expenses were \$224,957. Depreciation expense was the largest expense totaling \$131,442.

Using this Annual Financial Report

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements and notes to those statements. These statements are organized so the reader can understand the Authority as a financial whole, an entire operating entity.

The *Statement of Financial Position* and *Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Position* provide information about the activities of the Authority, presenting both an aggregate view of the Authority's finances and a longer-term view of those finances.

Reporting the Authority as a Whole:

Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

These statements view the Authority as a whole and look at all financial transactions and ask the question, "How did we do financially during 2016?" The Statement of Financial Position and the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position answer this question. These statements include *all assets* and *liabilities* using the *accrual basis of accounting* similar to the accounting used by most private-sector companies. This basis of accounting takes into account all of the current year's revenues and expenses regardless of when cash is received or paid.

These two statements report the Authority's *net position* and changes in that position. This change in net position is important because it tells the reader whether the *financial position* of Authority has improved or diminished. The causes of this may be the result of many factors, some financial, some not. Non-financial factors include Ohio laws restricting revenue growth, facility conditions, and other factors.

In the Statement of Financial Position and the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Change in Position, the Authority has only Business-type activities.

Business-Type Activities - These services are provided on a charge for services basis to recover all of the expenses of the goods or services provided. The Authority's operations are reported as business activities.

The Authority as a Whole

Recall that the Statement of Net Position provides the perspective of the Authority as a whole. Table 1 provides a summary of the Authority's financial position for 2016 compared to 2015:

Management's Discussion and Analysis

For the Years Ended December 31, 2016 and 2015

Unaudited

Table 1 Net Position

Business-Type Activities		
	2016	2015
Asset		
Current Assets	\$ 2,368,061	\$ 2,348,555
Restricted Assets	920,299	996,397
Capital Assets	1,583,562	1,671,475
Total Assets	4,871,922	5,016,427
Liabilities		
Current and Other Liabilities	65,463	90,301
Long-term Liabilities	574,000	626,000
Total Liabilities	639,463	716,301
Net Position		
Net Investment in Capital Assets	957,562	968,475
Restricted	920,299	996,397
Unrestricted	2,354,598	2,335,254
Total Net Position	\$ 4,232,459	\$ 4,300,126

Total assets decreased \$144,505. Cash and investments decreased by \$19,308. Table 2 shows the changes in net position for the year 2016 and 2015:

Table 2 Change in Net Position

	 2016	2015		
Operating Revenues Operating Expenses Operating Income (Loss)	\$ 108,291 (224,957) (116,666)	\$	237,741 (193,188) 44,553	
Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses): Interest,Dividends, and Realized Gains Net Decrease in Fair Value of Investments Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) Change in Net Position	 47,526 <u>1,473</u> <u>48,999</u> (67,667)	\$	43,480 (12,246) 31,234 75,787	

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Capital Assets

At the end of fiscal 2016 the Authority had \$1,583,562 (net of accumulated depreciation of \$2,813,899) invested in land, infrastructure, and equipment. Table 3 shows 2016 balances compared to 2015:

Management's Discussion and Analysis

For the Years Ended December 31, 2016 and 2015

Unaudited

Table 3								
Capital Assets (Net of Depreciation)								
Business-Type Activities	2016	2015						
Land	\$ 368,558	\$ 368,558						
Railroad Track	3,615,718	3,572,189						
Highway Crossing Signals	389,170	389,170						
Equipment	24,015	24,015						
Accumulated Depreciation	(2,813,899)	(2,682,457)						
Totals	\$ 1,583,562	<u>\$ 1,671,475</u>						

Debt

At December 31, 2016 the Authority had \$626,000 in bonds outstanding, \$52,000 due within one year.

Table 4						
Outstandi	ng De	ebt, at Year E	ind			
		2016		2015		
Shipper Bonds Payable	\$	626,000	\$	703,000		
Totals	\$	626.000	\$	703.000		

For the Future

The Authority is strong financially. As the preceding information shows, the Authority heavily depends on service fees. However, financially the future is not without challenges. Thus management must be diligently plan expenses, staying carefully within the Authority's budget. Additional revenues must not be treated as a windfall to expand services.

Contacting the Authority's Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide our citizen's, taxpayers, investors and creditors with a general overview of the Authority's finances and to show the Authority's accountability for the money it receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional information, contact Mr. James Supance, Chairperson of the Board, P.O. Box 767, Tiffin, Ohio 44883. Or e-mail at jsupance@sstpa.org.

Sandusky County-Seneca County-City of Tiffin Port Authority

Statements of Financial Position December 31, 2016 and 2015

	2016			2015		
Assets						
Current Assets:						
Cash	\$	3,837	\$	3,693		
Investments		2,346,585		2,289,939		
Accounts Receivable - Net of \$5,000		9,089		46,541		
Accrued Interest		231		185		
Prepaid Items		8,319		8,197		
Total Current Assets		2,368,061		2,348,555		
Investments - Restricted		920,299		996,397		
Non-Depreciable Capital Assets		368,558		368,558		
Capital Assets, net of Depreciation		1,215,004		1,302,917		
Net Capital Assets		1,583,562		1,671,475		
Total Assets	\$	4,871,922	\$	5,016,427		
Liabilities						
Current Liabilities:						
Loan from Shippers Payable - Current Portion	\$	52,000	\$	77,000		
Accrued Property Tax		13,463		13,301		
Total Current Liabilities		65,463		90,301		
Long-Term Liabilities:						
Loans from Shippers Payable		574,000		626,000		
Total Long-Term Liabilities		574,000		626,000		
Total Liabilities		639,463		716,301		
Net Position						
Net Investment in Capital Assets		957,562		968,475		
Restricted for Debt Service		335,755		383,966		
Restricted for Maintenance		584,544		612,431		
Unrestricted		2,354,598		2,335,254		
Total Net Position		4,232,459		4,300,126		
Total Liabilities and Net Position	\$	4,871,922	\$	5,016,427		

See Accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements.

Sandusky County-Seneca County-City of Tiffin Port Authority

Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position For the Years Ended December 31, 2016 and 2015

	2016	2015
Operating Revenues:		
Charges for Services	\$ 108,291	\$ 237,741
Total Operating Revenues	108,291	237,741
Operating Expenses:		
Outside Service Expense	17,808	18,858
Insurance Expense	22,138	21,804
Professional Expense	17,413	8,817
Property Tax Expense	13,463	13,341
Bad Debt Expense	22,230	-
Depreciation Expense	131,442	130,023
Miscellaneous Expense	463	345
Total Operating Expenses	224,957	193,188
Operating Income (Loss)	(116,666)	44,553
Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses):		
Interest, Dividends, and Realized Capital Gains	47,526	44,861
Change in Fair Value of Investments	1,473	(13,627)
Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)	48,999	31,234
Change in Net Assets	(67,667)	75,787
Net Position Beginning of Year	4,300,126	4,224,339
Net Position End of Year	\$ 4,232,459	\$ 4,300,126

See Accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements.

Sandusky County-Seneca County-City of Tiffin Port Authority

Statements of Cash Flows For the Years Ended December 31, 2016 and 2015

		2016	_	2015
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:	.	115 5 10	<i>.</i>	252 210
Cash Received from Shippers and Operator	\$	145,743	\$	253,318
Cash Paid for Services and Supplies		(71,245)		(60,849)
Net Cash Provided by Operating				
Activities		74,498		192,469
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:				
Purchase/(Sale)-Net of Investments		45,770		(134,689)
Interest Income from Repurchased Agreement		404		347
Net Cash Provided by Investing				
Activities		46,174		(134,342)
Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities:				
Principal Repayment on Shipper Bonds		(77,000)		(52,000)
Purchase of Capital Assets		(43,528)		(6,385)
Net Cash Provided by Capital and Related				
Financing Activities		(120,528)		(58,385)
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents		144		(258)
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year		3,693		3,951
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year		3,837		3,693
Reconciliation of Change in Net Position to Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities:				
Change in Operating Income		(116,666)		44,553
Adjustments to Reconcile Change in Net Position to Net Cash from Operating Activities:				
Depreciation Expense		131,442		130,023
Bad Debts		22,230		-
(Increase) Decrease in Accounts Receivable (Net)		37,452		15,578
(Increase) Decrease in Prepaid Items		(122)		1,706
Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Property Taxes		162		609
Total Adjustments		191,164		147,916
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities	\$	74,498	\$	192,469

See Accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015

1. <u>NATURE OF THE ORGANIZATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES</u>

Description of the Organization

The Sandusky County-Seneca County-City of Tiffin Port Authority (the Authority) is a governmental subdivision created following enactment by the Ohio Legislature of the Ohio Port Authority Act. The Act permits the Authority to administer railroad services to area businesses that ship goods and economic development business within the State of Ohio. The Authority charges fees from these businesses for operations, replacement of infrastructure and repair and to pay off railroad debt. The Authority is governed by a Board of seven directors who are appointed by Sandusky County, Seneca County and the City of Tiffin. In 2009 the Authority added the issuance of revenue bonds to provide financial assistance to private-sector, governmental and non-profit entities for the acquisition and construction of industrial and commercial facilities deemed to be in the public interest.

The nucleus of the financial reporting entity as defined by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 14 is the "primary Government." A fundamental characteristic of a primary government is that it is a fiscally independent entity. In evaluating how to define the financial reporting entity, management has considered all potential components units. A component unit is a legally separate entity for which the primary government is financially accountable. The criteria of financial accountability is the ability of the primary government to impose its will upon the potential component unit. These criteria were considered in determining the reporting entity. The Authority does not have financial accountability over any entities.

2. <u>SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES</u>

A. **Basis of Accounting**

The Authority's operates as a self-supporting governmental enterprise and uses accounting policies applicable to governmental enterprise funds. All transactions are accounted for in a single enterprise fund. The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in all material respects. The financial statements have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to a governmental nonprofit organization. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.

B. <u>Basic Financial Statements</u>

The Statement of Financial Position and the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position display information about the Authority as a whole. These statements include the financial activities of the primary government. The statements include the financial activities of the primary government.

C. <u>Fund Accounting</u>

The Authority uses one fund to maintain its financial records during the fiscal year. Fund accounting is designed to demonstrate legal compliance and to aid management by segregating transactions related to certain Authority functions or activities. A fund is defined as a fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts. The one fund of the Authority is classified into one category: proprietary.

Proprietary funds focus on the determination of the changes in financial position, financial position and cash flows and are classified as either enterprise or internal service. The Authority has no internal service funds.

Enterprise funds may be used to account for any activity for which a fee is charged to external users for goods or services. The Authority's transactions are accounted in a single enterprise fund.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

D. <u>Measurement Focus</u>

The enterprise fund is accounted for on a flow of economic resources measurement focus. All assets and all liabilities associated with the operation of the Authority are included on the Statement of Net Position. The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position presents increases and decreases in Net Position. The Statement of Cash Flows provides information about how the Authority finances and meets the cash flow needs of its proprietary activities.

E. <u>Cash Equivalents and Investments</u>

For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows all cash equivalents under 90 days maturity are included.

Investments are made in accordance with the Authority's investment policy, which conforms to statutes of the State of Ohio. Restricted investments represent balances restricted by agreement with shippers for debt service and maintenance of the railroad. All restricted investments are pooled with unrestricted investments to obtain the highest interest rate possible.

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 31, "Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and for External Investment Pools", the Authority reports its investments at fair value, except for nonparticipating investment contracts (certificates of deposit and a repurchase agreement) which are reported at cost, which approximates fair value. All investment income, including changes in the fair value of investments, is recognized as revenue in the operating statements. Fair value is determined by quoted market prices.

F. <u>Capital Assets</u>

Property and infrastructure (railroad track and railroad ties) are recorded at cost, or fair market value is used when assets are acquired in a non-cash transaction, net of accumulated depreciation. Depreciation expense is provided using the straight-line method over the estimated useful life of the asset. Maintenance and repairs are charged to expense and improvements are capitalized. Interest on funds are used during construction , less interest earned on related investments if the assets are financed with the proceeds from restricted obligations, is capitalized as part of the cost of the asset. Equipment is also recorded at cost and is depreciated using the straight-line method over a fifteen-year life.

G. <u>Net Position</u>

Net Position represents the difference between assets and deferred outflows of resources and liabilities and deferred inflows of resources. Investment in capital assets, net of debt consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of any borrowings used for the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets. Restricted net position assets consist of monies and other resources, which are restricted to satisfy debt service requirements as specified in a debt agreement. Restricted net position assets also include cash received from shippers who pay a fee per car ship for maintenance of the rail tracks and infrastructure.

H. Operating Revenues and Expenses

Operating revenues consist primarily of fees for services and other miscellaneous income. Nonoperating revenues are revenues not meeting the definition of operating revenues and include interest and dividends from investment, unrealized gains, and realized gains on investments. Revenue resulting from exchange transactions, in which each party gives and receives essentially equal value, is recorded on the accrual basis when the exchange takes place. Non-exchange transactions, in which the Authority receives value without directly giving equal value in return, include grants, entitlements and donations. On an accrual basis, revenue from grants, entitlements and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

H. Operating Revenues and Expenses (Continued)

Eligibility requirements include timing requirements, which specify the fiscal year when the resources are required to be used of the fiscal year when use is first permitted, matching requirements, in which the Authority must provide local resources to be used for a specified purpose, and expenditure requirements, in which the resources are provided to the Authority on a reimbursement basis. The Authority did not have any non-exchange transactions this year.

Operating expenses include the cost of providing railroad services, including administrative expenses and depreciation on capital assets. Nonoperating expenses include interest expense on long-term debt, unrealized losses, and realized losses on investments.

I. <u>Estimates</u>

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

J. <u>Budgetary Process</u>

The Authority has been notified by the Seneca County Auditor that it has waived the requirement to prepare a tax budget.

K. <u>Subsequent Events</u>

The Authority evaluated subsequent events through the date the financial statements were issued. No subsequent events were identified that required adjustment to or disclosure within the financial statements.

L. <u>Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources</u>

In addition to assets, the Statement of Net Position may report deferred outflows of resources. Deferred outflows of resources represent a consumption of net position that applies to a future period and will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until that time. The Authority did not report any deferred outflows for 2016 or 2015.

In addition to liabilities, the Statement of Net Position may report deferred inflows of resources. Deferred inflows of resources represent ad acquisition of net position that applies to a future period and will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The Authority did not report any deferred inflows of resources for 2016 or 2015.

M. Statement of Cash Flows

For the purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the Authority considered all short term investments with a maturity of three months or less at the time they are acquired to be cash equivalents.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015

3. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

<u>Deposits</u>

State statutes classify deposits held by the Authority into three categories.

Active monies are public monies determined to be necessary to meet current demand on the treasury. Such monies must be maintained either as cash in the Authority's treasury, in commercial accounts payable or withdrawable on demand, including negotiable order of withdrawal (NOW) accounts, or in money market deposit accounts.

Inactive deposits are public deposits that the Authority has identified as not required for use within the current five-year period of designation of depositories. Inactive deposits must be either be evidenced by certificates of deposit maturing not later that the end of the current period of designation depositories, or by savings or deposit accounts including, but not limited to, passbook accounts.

Interim deposits are deposits of interim monies. Interim monies are those monies, which are not needed for immediate use but which will be needed before the end of the current period of designation of depositories. Interim deposits must be evidenced by time certificates of deposit maturing not more than one year from the date of deposit, or by savings or deposit accounts including passbook accounts.

Interim monies may be deposited or invested in the following securities:

- 1. United States treasury notes, bills, bonds, or any other obligation or security issued by the United States treasury or any other obligation guaranteed as to principal or interest by the United States, or any book entry, zero coupon United States treasury security that is a direct obligation of the United States;
- Bonds, notes, debentures, or any other obligations or securities issued by any federal government agency or instrumentality, including but not limited to the Federal National Mortgage Association, Federal Home Loan Bank, Federal Farm Credit Bank, Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation, Government National Mortgage Association and Student Loan Marketing Association. All federal agency securities shall be direct issuances of federal government agencies or instrumentalities;
- 3. Written repurchase agreements in the securities listed above provided that the market value of the securities subject to the repurchase agreement must exceed the principal value of the agreement by at least two percent and be marked to market daily, and that the term of the agreement must not exceed thirty days.
- 4. Bonds and other obligations of the State of Ohio or its political subdivisions, provided that such political subdivisions are located wholly or partly within the County;
- 5. No-load money market mutual funds consisting exclusively of obligations described in division (1) or (2) of this section and repurchase agreements secured by such obligations, provided that investments in securities described in this division are made only through eligible institutions;
- 6. The State Treasurer's investment pool (STAR Ohio);
- 7. Securities lending agreements in which the County lends securities and the eligible institution agrees to simultaneously exchange either securities described in division (1) or (2) or cash, or both cash and securities, equal value for equal value;
- 8. High grade commercial paper in an amount not to exceed up to five percent of the Authority's total portfolio;
- 9. Bankers' acceptances and commercial paper notes in an amount not to exceed two hundred and seventy days and in an amount not to exceed ten percent of the Authority's total average portfolio; and

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015

3. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Deposits (Continued)

10. Under limited circumstances, corporate debt interest rated in any of the three highest rating classifications by at least two nationally recognized rating agencies.

Protection of the Authority's deposits is provided by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC), by eligible securities pledged to the Authority by the financial institution as security for repayment, by surety company bonds deposited with the fiscal officer by the financial institution, or by a collateral pool established by the financial institution to secure the repayment of all public monies deposited with the institution

The carrying amount of the cash deposits held by the Authority at December 31, 2016 was \$3,837 and the bank balance was \$3,837. The carrying amount of the cash deposits held by the Authority at December 31, 2015 was \$3,693 and the bank balance was \$3,693. Federal depository insurance covered deposits.

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of bank failure, the Authority's deposits may not be returned. All deposits are collateralized with eligible securities in amounts equal to at least 105% of the carrying value of the deposits. Such collateral pools at the Federal Reserve Banks, or at member banks of the Federal Reserve System, in the name of the respective depository bank and pledged as a pool of collateral against all the public deposits it holds or as specific collateral held at the Federal Reserve Bank in the name of the Authority.

Collateral is required for demand deposits and certificates of deposit in excess of all deposits covered by Federal Depository insurance. Obligations that may be pledges as collateral are obligations of the United States and its agencies, obligations of the State of Ohio and its municipalities, and obligations of the other states. Obligations pledged to secure deposits must be delivered to a bank other than the institution in which the deposit is made. Written custodial agreements are required.

2016:

Old Fort Banking Company - Checking	<u>Balance</u> \$3.837	<u>Restricted</u>	Unrestricted \$3.837
ond fort Bunking Company Chocking	φ3,037	Ψ	\$3,057
2015:	Dolonoo	Restricted	Unnectricted
Old Fort Banking Company - Checking	<u>Balance</u> \$3,693	<u>Restricted</u> \$ -	<u>Unrestricted</u> \$3.693
	, = , = , =		+-,

Investments

The Authority held Certificates of Deposit, Federal Government Agency Bonds and Notes, Money Market Funds, and a Repurchase Agreement during the year. Investments are made in accordance with statutes of the State of Ohio and the Investment Policy of the Board of Directors.

Investments in stripped principal or interest obligations, reverse repurchase agreements and investment in derivatives and investments in stripped principal or interest obligations that are not issued or guaranteed by the United States, are prohibited. The issuance of taxable notes for the purpose of arbitrage, the use of leverage and short selling are also prohibited. An investment must mature within five years from the date of purchase unless matched to a specific obligation or debt of the Authority, and must be purchased with the expectation that it will be held to maturity.

Investments are categorized to give an indication of the level of risk assumed by the entity at year-end. Category 1 includes investments that are insured or registered or securities held by the entity. Category 2 includes uninsured and unregistered investments for which the securities are held by the counterparty's trust department or agent in the entity's name. Category 3 includes uninsured and unregistered investments for which the securities are held by the counterparty or by its trust department, but not in the entity's name.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015

3. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Investments (Continued)

	2016						
	Moody's	Fair Value	Percentage	Investme	nt Maturi	rities (In Years)	
	Rating	Category 1	Held	Less than 1	1-3	3-5	More than 5
Croghan Colonial Bank-CD	N/A	\$ 96,793	3.0%	\$ 96,793	\$-	\$ -	\$ -
Sutton State Bank-CD	N/A	38,568	1.2%	-	38,568	-	-
Fifth Third-CD	N/A	105,562	3.2%	105,562	-	-	-
Old Fort Banking CoCD	N/A	95,172	2.9%	95,172	-	-	-
Old Fort Banking CoCD	N/A	84,005	2.6%	84,005	-	-	-
1st Bank of Ohio-CD	N/A	109,547	3.4%	109,547	-	-	-
Total Category 1		529,647	16.2%	491,079	38,568	-	-
		Category 3					
Old Fort Banking Repurchased Agreement	N/A	211,392	6.5%	211,392	-	-	-

	2015							
	Moody's	Fair Value	Percentage	Investment Maturities			s (In Years)	
	Rating	Category 1	Held	Less than 1	1-3	3-5	More than 5	
Croghan Colonial Bank-CD	N/A	\$ 96,550	3.1%	\$ -	\$ 96,550	\$ -	\$ -	
Sutton State Bank-CD	N/A	38,394	1.2%	38,394	-	-	-	
Fifth Third-CD	N/A	104,449	3.4%	-	104,449	-	-	
Old Fort Banking CoCD	N/A	94,791	3.1%	94,791	-	-	-	
Old Fort Banking CoCD	N/A	83,169	2.7%	83,169	-	-	-	
1st Bank of Ohio-CD	N/A	108,129	3.5%	108,129	-	-	-	
Total Category 1		525,482	16.9%	324,483	200,999	-	-	
		Category 3						
Old Fort Banking Repurchased Agreement	N/A	279,392	9.0%	144,703	-	-	-	

Space Intentionally Left Blank

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015

3. <u>DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)</u>

Investments (Continued)

	2016								
	Moody's	Fair Value	Percentage	Inve	estment Mat	urities (In \	(ears)		
	Rating	Category 1	Held	less than 1	1-3	3-5	more than 5		
Fifth Third Securities:									
	N/A	101 220	3.1%	22.072	69 257				
Ally Bank CD Citicorp Mrtg Sec Series 2007	Caa1	101,330	0.3%	33,073	68,257	-	- 9,070		
Capital One Bk USA Natl Assn	N/A	9,070	1.5%	50,190	-	-	9,070		
Discover Bk Greenwood Del	N/A N/A	50,190	1.5%	,	-	-	-		
		54,018		54,018	-	-	-		
Everbank CD	N/A	-	0.0%	-	-	-	-		
Federal National Mortgage Assn	B	466	0.0%	-	-	-	466		
Federated Prime Val Obligation Fund	N/A	1,984	0.1%	1,984	-	-	-		
FT Unit FT GNMA Reinvestment	N/A	380,751	11.7%	-	-	-	380,751		
Goldman Sachs Bank CD	N/A	25,018	0.8%	25,018	-	-	-		
Govt National Mortgage Assn	N/A	22,023	0.7%	-	-	-	22,023		
Iberiabank Lafayette	N/A	-	0.0%	-	-	-	-		
HSBC Bank CD	N/A	27,304	0.8%	-	27,304	-	-		
JP Morgan Chase Bank	N/A	11,014	0.3%	-	11,014	-	-		
Synchrony Bk Retail CD	N/A	56,410	1.7%	-	20,112	36,298	-		
Wells Fargo Bank	N/A	50,939	1.6%		50,939	-	-		
Subtotal	-	790,517	24.2%	164,283	177,626	36,298	412,310		
Huntington Driveto Financiali									
Huntington Private Financial:	N1/A	0.07	0.00/	0.07					
Huntington Treasury Money Market	N/A	337	0.0%	337	-	-	-		
Ally Bank CD	N/A	-	0.0%	-	-	-	-		
Bank Baroda CD	N/A		0.0%	-	-	-	-		
Beal Band Las Vegas, Nev. CD	N/A	50,938	1.6%	50,938	-	-	-		
America Express Centurion Series CD	N/A	119,368	3.7%	51,100	68,268	-	-		
Discover Bank CD	N/A	56,991	1.7%	56,991	-	-	-		
Discover Bank CD	N/A		0.0%		-	-	-		
Everbank Jacksonville, Fla. CE	N/A	71,955	2.2%	71,955	-	-	-		
Federal Farmers Credit Bank	Aaa	-	0.0%	-	-	-	-		
Goldman Sachs Bank USA CD	N/A	70,305	2.2%	19,002	51,303	-	-		
HSBC Bank CD	N/A	95,034	2.9%	-	-	95,034	-		
JPM organ Chase Bank CD	N/A	133,789	4.1%	-	133,789	-	-		
Synchrony Bk Retail CD	N/A	-	0.0%	-	-	-	-		
Wellis Fargo Bank Natl Assn Cd	N/A	49,812	1.5%	49,812	-	-	-		
Welch State Bank CD	N/A	240,572	7.4%		240,572	-	-		
Subtotal	N/A	889,101	27.2%	300,135	493,932	95,034	-		
KeyBanc Capital Markets									
Alley Bank CD	N/A	140,992	4.3%	64,141	76,851	_	-		
American Express Fed Sygs Bank CT F	N/A	59,068	1.8%	59,068			-		
BMW Salt Lake City UT	N/A	94,823	2.9%	94,823	_	_			
Capital One Bk USA Natl Assn Glen Allen	N/A	184,512	5.6%	58,007	34,525	91,980			
Discover Bk Greenwood Del CD	N/A	-	0.0%			51,500			
Federal Natl Mtg Assn Fixed Rate	AAA	66,058	2.0%	66,058	_	_			
Federated Money Market	N/A	4,426	0.1%	4,426	_	_	_		
First Bank Puerto Rico, CD	Ba3	4,420	0.1%	4,420	-	-	-		
Goldman Sachs Bank CD	N/A	- 73,171	2.2%	-	- 72 171	-	-		
Goldman Sachs Bank CD Goldman Sachs Bank CD	N/A N/A			-	73,171	60 5/1	-		
		60,541 74,986	1.9%	-	-	60,541 74,986	-		
Synchrony Bank Retail CTF	N/A	74,986	2.3%	-	-	14,900	-		
ZBNA InsnstICTFDEPProgram Subtotal	N/A	87,652 846,229	<u>2.7%</u> 25.9%	87,652 434,175	- 184,547	227,507	-		
Currola	-	040,229	20.9%	434,175	104,047	221,307	-		
Total Investments		\$ 3,266,886	100.0%	\$ 1,601,064	\$894,673	\$358,839	\$ 412,310		
	=	· · · · · ·		· · · · ·					

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015

3. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Investments (Continued)

				2015			
	Moody's	Fair Value	Percentage	Inve	stment Matur	ities (In Ye	ears)
	Rating	Category 1	Held	less than 1	1-3	3-5	more than 5
Fifth Third Securities:							
Ally Bank CD	N/A	32,923	1.0%	_	32,923	_	_
Citicorp Mrtg Sec Series 2007	Caa1	11,077	0.3%		52,525		11,077
Capital One Bk USA Natl Assn	N/A	33,012	1.0%	33,012	-	-	11,077
Discover Bk Greenwood Del	N/A	54,080	1.6%	55,012	- 54,080	_	-
Everbank CD	N/A	22,985	0.7%	- 22,985	54,000	-	-
	B	22,903 568	0.7%	22,905	-	-	- 568
Federal National Mortgage Assn Federated Prime Val Obligation Fund	ы N/A	8,805	0.0%	- 0 00E	-	-	506
FT Unit FT GNMA Reinvestment	N/A N/A	386,355	11.8%	8,805	-	-	206 255
				-	-	-	386,355
Goldman Sachs Bank CD	N/A	24,998	0.8%	-	24,998	-	-
Govt National Mortgage Assn	N/A	22,406	0.7%	-	-	-	22,406
Iberiabank Lafayette	N/A	96,060	2.9%	96,060	-	-	-
HSBC Bank CD	N/A	26,764	0.8%	-	-	26,764	-
Synchrony Bk Retail CD	N/A	55,183	1.7%		-	55,183	-
Subtotal		775,216	23.6%	160,862	112,001	81,947	420,406
Huntington Private Financial:							
Huntington Treasury Money Market	N/A	1,909	0.1%	1,909	-	-	-
Ally Bank CD	N/A	49,992	1.5%	49,992	-	-	-
Bank Baroda CD	N/A	99,861	3.0%	99,861	-	-	-
America Express Centurion Series CD	N/A	171,097	5.2%	53,014	118,083	-	-
Discover Bank CD	N/A	50,074	1.5%	50,074	-	-	-
Discover Bank CD	N/A	35,353	1.1%	35,353	-	-	-
Federal Farmers Credit Bank	Aaa	129,342	3.9%	-	129,342	-	-
Goldman Sachs Bank USA CD	N/A	69,921	2.1%	19,214	50,707	-	-
HSBC Bank CD	N/A	94,237	2.9%	-	94,237	-	-
Synchrony Bk Retail CD	N/A	71,758	2.2%	-	71,758	-	-
Welch State Bank CD	N/A	103,692	3.2%	-	103,692	-	-
Subtotal	N/A	877,236	26.7%	309,417	567,819	-	-
Kau Daga Orgʻi al Marilastar							
KeyBanc Capital Markets:	N1/A	400.077	4.40/	70.007	00.050		
Alley Bank CD	N/A	133,877	4.1%	70,027	63,850	-	-
American Express Fed Sygs Bank CT F	N/A	58,777	1.8%	-	58,777	-	-
Capital One Bk USA Natl Assn Glen Allen	N/A	181,998	5.5%	-	57,881	124,117	-
Discover Bk Greenwood Del CD	N/A	86,215	2.6%	-	86,215	-	-
Federal Natl Mtg Assn Fixed Rate	AAA	65,855	2.0%	-	65,855	-	-
Federated Money Market	N/A	3,098	0.1%	3,098	-	-	-
First Bank Puerto Rico, CD	Ba3	94,053	2.9%	94,053	-	-	-
Goldman Sachs Bank CD	N/A	72,534	2.2%	-	-	72,534	-
Goldman Sachs Bank CD	N/A	59,164	1.8%	-	-	59,164	-
Synchrony Bank Retail CTF	N/A	73,439	2.2%	-	-	73,439	-
Subtotal		829,010	25.2%	167,178	332,578	329,254	-
Total Investments		\$3,286,336	100.0%	\$1,241,332	\$1,213,397	\$411,201	\$ 420,406

Interest Rate Risk – As a means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses arising from rising interest rates and according to state laws, the Authority limits investments to those permitted by Ohio Revised Code which is five years or less.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015

3. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Investments (Continued)

Credit Risk - The Authority limits investments to securities specifically authorized by Ohio Revised Code.

Custodial Credit Risk - For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the Authority will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. Of the Authority's investments in federal agency securities, the entire balance is uninsured, not registered in the name of the Authority, and are held by the counterparty.

Concentration of Credit Risk – Concentration of credit risk exists when investments are concentrated in one issue. Currently the Authority does not have a policy, but individual investments are all less than 5% of the total investments.

4. <u>CAPITAL ASSETS</u>

A summary of railroad property and equipment at December 31, 2016 and 2015 respectively is as follows:

		Beginning Balance <u>12/31/2015</u>	<u>A</u>	<u>dditions</u>	Disp	<u>osals</u>		Ending Balance <u>2/31/2016</u>
Land	\$	368,558	\$	-	\$	-	\$	368,558
Railroad Track	·	3,572,189		43,529	·	-	·	3,615,718
Highway Crossing Signals		389,170		-		-		389,170
Equipment		24,015		-		-		24,015
Totals	\$	4,353,932	\$	43,529	\$	-	\$	4,397,461
		Accumulated Depreciation						cumulated preciation
		<u>12/31/2015</u>	De	preciation	<u>Disp</u>	<u>osals</u>	<u>1</u>	2/31/2016
Railroad Track	\$	2,530,854	\$	118,009	\$	-	\$	2,648,863
Highway Crossing Signals		129,433		12,972		-		142,405
Equipment		22,170		461		-		22,631
Totals		2,682,457		131,442		-		2,813,899
Net Book Value	\$	1,671,475	\$	(87,913)	\$	-	\$	1,583,562
	Restated Beginning Balance							
	Res	stated Beginning Balance						Ending Balance
	Res	0 0	<u>A</u>	<u>dditions</u>	<u>Disp</u>	<u>osals</u>		0
Land	Res \$	Balance	<u>A</u> \$	dditions	<u>Disp</u> \$	<u>osals</u> -		Balance
Land Railroad Track		Balance <u>12/31/2014</u>		<u>dditions</u> - 6,385		<u>osals</u> - -	<u>1</u>	Balance 2/31/2015
		Balance <u>12/31/2014</u> 368,558				osals - - -	<u>1</u>	Balance 2/31/2015 368,558
Railroad Track		Balance <u>12/31/2014</u> 368,558 3,565,804	\$			<u>osals</u> - - -	<u>1</u>	Balance 2/31/2015 368,558 3,572,189
Railroad Track Highway Crossing Signals		Balance <u>12/31/2014</u> 368,558 3,565,804 389,170				<u>osals</u> - - - - -	<u>1</u>	Balance 2/31/2015 368,558 3,572,189 389,170
Railroad Track Highway Crossing Signals Equipment	\$ \$ Rest	Balance <u>12/31/2014</u> 368,558 3,565,804 389,170 24,015 4,347,547 ated Accumulated Depreciation	\$	6,385 - - 6,385	\$	- - -	1 \$ \$ Ac De	Balance 2/31/2015 368,558 3,572,189 389,170 24,015 4,353,932 cumulated preciation
Railroad Track Highway Crossing Signals Equipment Totals	\$ \$ Rest	Balance <u>12/31/2014</u> 368,558 3,565,804 389,170 <u>24,015</u> <u>4,347,547</u> ated Accumulated	\$ \$ 	6,385 - -	\$ \$ Disp	- - -	1 \$ \$ Ac De 1	Balance 2/31/2015 368,558 3,572,189 389,170 24,015 4,353,932 cumulated
Railroad Track Highway Crossing Signals Equipment Totals Railroad Track	\$ \$ Rest	Balance <u>12/31/2014</u> 368,558 3,565,804 389,170 24,015 4,347,547 ated Accumulated Depreciation <u>12/31/2014</u> 2,414,269	\$	6,385 - - - 6,385 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -	\$	- - -	1 \$ \$ Ac De	Balance 2/31/2015 368,558 3,572,189 389,170 24,015 4,353,932 cumulated preciation 2/31/2015 2,530,859
Railroad Track Highway Crossing Signals Equipment Totals Railroad Track Highway Crossing Signals	\$ \$ Rest	Balance <u>12/31/2014</u> 368,558 3,565,804 389,170 24,015 4,347,547 ated Accumulated Depreciation <u>12/31/2014</u> 2,414,269 116,460	\$ \$ 	6,385 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -	\$ \$ Disp	- - -	1 \$ \$ Ac De 1	Balance 2/31/2015 368,558 3,572,189 389,170 24,015 4,353,932 cumulated preciation 2/31/2015 2,530,859 129,432
Railroad Track Highway Crossing Signals Equipment Totals Railroad Track Highway Crossing Signals Equipment	\$ \$ Rest	Balance <u>12/31/2014</u> 368,558 3,565,804 389,170 24,015 4,347,547 ated Accumulated Depreciation <u>12/31/2014</u> 2,414,269 116,460 21,705	\$ \$ 	6,385 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -	\$ \$ Disp	- - -	1 \$ \$ Ac De 1	Balance 2/31/2015 368,558 3,572,189 389,170 24,015 4,353,932 cumulated preciation 2/31/2015 2,530,859 129,432 22,166
Railroad Track Highway Crossing Signals Equipment Totals Railroad Track Highway Crossing Signals	\$ \$ Rest	Balance <u>12/31/2014</u> 368,558 3,565,804 389,170 24,015 4,347,547 ated Accumulated Depreciation <u>12/31/2014</u> 2,414,269 116,460	\$ \$ 	6,385 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -	\$ \$ Disp	- - -	1 \$ \$ Ac De 1	Balance 2/31/2015 368,558 3,572,189 389,170 24,015 4,353,932 cumulated preciation 2/31/2015 2,530,859 129,432

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015

4. <u>CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)</u>

Depreciation was taken on the railroad track over a thirty-year life and on equipment over a fifteen-year life. A detailed inventory by class did not exist at May 1990 when the original track and property was transferred to the Authority. However, most of the inventory was railroad track and signals. Since a detailed inventory is not available, items that are replaced are considered to be fully depreciated and the replaced items are not deducted from the capital asset balance because they are not known.

5. LONG TERM DEBT

Non-interest revenue bonds were issued in 1990 pursuant to authorization of the Ohio Revised Code in the amount of \$1,117,000 to various shippers who use the railroad. The bonds proceeds were used to purchase 25.1 miles of railroad from Conrail on May 16, 1990. The outstanding debt at December 31, 2016 and 2015 totals \$626,000 and \$703,000.

In 2005, a bond of \$50,000 was issued to Northern Ohio and Western Railway replacing Sagamore National Corporation as operator. Northern Ohio and Western Railway's bond was surrendered as part of a new operating agreement that went into effect February 2005. Debt service requirements on each bond issue are secured by future revenue from shippers who will utilize the railroad to be financed. Debt service requirements are being kept in a Restricted for Debt Service account until the bonds come due through 2028 (See Note 6).

	Beginning Balance <u>12/31/2015</u>	Issued	<u>Redeemed</u>	Ending Balance <u>12/31/2016</u>	Due Within One Year
Revenue Bonds	\$ 703,000	\$-	\$ 77,000	\$ 626,000	\$ 52,000
Total Long Term Debt	\$ 703,000	\$-	\$ 77,000	\$ 626,000	\$ 52,000
	Beginning Balance <u>12/31/2014</u>	Issued	<u>Redeemed</u>	Ending Balance <u>12/31/2015</u>	Due Within One Year
Revenue Bonds	\$ 755,000	<u>\$ </u>	\$ 52,000	\$ 703,000	\$ 77,000
Total Long Term Debt	\$ 755,000		\$ 52,000	\$ 703,000	\$ 77,000

The annual requirements to amortize all bonded and loan debt outstanding as of December 31, 2016 and 2015:

Year	
Ending	Shipper
12/31/2016	Bonds
2017	52,000
2018	52,000
2019	52,000
2020	52,000
2021	52,000
2022-2026	260,000
2027-2028	106,000
Total Principal	\$ 626,000

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015

5. LONG TERM DEBT(Continued)

Year	
Ending	Shipper
12/31/2015	Bonds
2016	77,000
2017	52,000
2018	52,000
2019	52,000
2020	52,000
2021-2025	260,000
2026-2028	158,000
Total Principal	\$ 703,000

6. <u>RESTRICTED FOR DEBT SERVICE</u>

A restricted account has been established for future payment of revenue bonds. The restricted balance at December 31, 2016 and 2015 is \$335,755 and \$383,966, respectively. 2016 annual restriction requirement was \$28,789 and was calculated using the estimated interest income rate of 2.75 percent (\$8,986) plus an amount of \$19,803 that was calculated to pay off the bonds. 2015 annual reserve requirement was \$29,410 and was calculated using the estimated interest income rate of 2.75 percent (\$9,607) plus an amount of \$19,803 that was calculated to pay off the bonds.

7. <u>RESTRICTED FOR MAINTENANCE</u>

Both the shippers and the operator are charged a fee to offset repairs and replacement costs based on the number of cars shipped. The charge for the shippers is generally \$15 per car, but the "per car" amount may vary. The operator was charged \$7 per car. Repair and replacement expenses are closed to this restricted account at the end of the year. The balance in the Restricted for Maintenance account at December 31, 2016 and 2015 is \$584,544 and \$612,431.

8. OPERATOR

Northern Ohio and Western Railway is the current operator for the Authority. For the year ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, Northern Ohio and Western Railway accounted for approximately \$62,397 (58%) and \$88,875 (37%) respectively, of the Authority's operating income. In June 2015, an extension of the operating agreement for ten years was entered for the period January 2016 until December 2025. The agreement can be extended for an additional ten-year term from January 2026 to December 2035 provided written notice has not been given by either party.

Northern Ohio and Western Railway is to pay an operator fee per month based on the following cars shipped:

1-117	\$4,500
118-200	\$5,500
201-284	\$6,500
285-367	\$7,500
368-451	\$8,500
452 and over	\$9,500

In addition Northern Ohio and Western Railway is to pay \$7 per revenue car that is shipped for maintenance and repair and \$27 for each storage car. The maintenance and repair fee is required to be restricted in an interest bearing account.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015

9. <u>RISK MANAGEMENT</u>

The Authority is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets, and natural disasters.

The Authority does not have a "self-insurance" fund with formalized risk management programs. During 2016, the Authority purchased property, public official's liability, railroad liability, and bond policies from United Insurance Service.

Settled claims have not exceeded this commercial coverage in any of the past three year and there has been no significant reduction in insurance coverage from last year.

10. CONDUIT DEBT

In 2009 the Authority began issuing revenue bonds to provide financial assistance to private-sector, governmental and non-profit entities for the acquisition and construction of industrial and commercial facilities deemed to be in the public interest. The bonds are secured by the property financed and are payable solely from payments on the underlying mortgage loans. Upon repayment of the obligations, ownership of the acquired facilities transfers to the entity served by the bond issuance. The Authority is not obligated in any manner for repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as liabilities in the accompanying financial statements.

As of December 31, 2016 and 2015 there are no series of Revenue Bonds outstanding.

11. OUTSIDE CONTRACT

Presently the Authority does not have any employees or offices. Operations are handled by the Seneca Industrial and Economic Development Corporation who receives a monthly fee of \$1,484 based on an amended contract dated February 2015.

12. RELATED PART TRANSACTIONS

The Secretary of the Board is an employee of the Seneca Industrial and Economic Development Corporation who receives a monthly operating fee as mentioned in Note 11.

313 Second St. Marietta, 0H 45750 740.373.0056

1907 Grand Central Ave. Vienna, WV 26105 304.422.2203

104 South Sugar St. St. Clairsville, OH 43950 740.695.1569

1310 Market Street, Suite 300 Wheeling, WV 26003 304.232.1358

749 Wheeling Ave., Suite 300 Cambridge, OH 43725 740.435.3417



www.perrycpas.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS REQUIRED BY *GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS*

June 19, 2018

Sandusky County-Seneca County-City of Tiffin Port Authority Seneca County P.O. Box 767 Tiffin, Ohio 44883

To the Board of Directors:

We have audited in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States and the Comptroller General of the United States' *Government Auditing Standards*, the financial statements of the **Sandusky County-Seneca County-City of Tiffin Port Authority**, Seneca County, (the Authority) as of and for the year ended December 31, 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated June 19, 2018.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

As part of our financial statement audit, we considered the Authority's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures appropriate in the circumstances to the extent necessary to support our opinions on the financial statements, but not to the extent necessary to opine on the effectiveness of the Authority's internal control. Accordingly, we have not opined on it.

A *deficiency in internal control* exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, when performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and timely correct misstatements. A *material weakness* is a deficiency, or combination of internal control deficiencies resulting in a reasonable possibility that internal control will not prevent or detect and timely correct a material misstatement of the Authority's financial statements. A *significant deficiency* is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all internal control deficiencies that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider material weaknesses. However, unidentified material weaknesses may exist.

www.perrycpas.com

Tax - Accounting – Audit – Review – Compilation – Agreed Upon Procedure – Consultation – Bookkeeping – Payroll – Litigation Support – Financial Investigations Members: American Institute of Certified Public Accountants

Ohio Society of CPAs * West Virginia Society of CPAs * Association of Certified Fraud Examiners * Association of Certified Anti-Money Laudering Specialists *

Sandusky County-Seneca County-City of Tiffin Port Authority Seneca County Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Required by *Government Auditing Standards* Page 2

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of reasonably assuring whether the Authority's financial statements are free of material misstatement, we tested its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could directly and materially affect the determination of financial statement amounts. However, opining on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and accordingly, we do not express an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that we must report under *Government Auditing Standards*.

We did note certain matters not requiring inclusion in this report that we reported to the Authority's management in a separate letter dated June 19, 2018.

Purpose of this Report

This report only describes the scope of our internal control and compliance testing and our testing results, and does not opine on the effectiveness of the Authority's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed under *Government Auditing Standards* in considering the Authority's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

erry Amocutes CAA'S A. C.

Perry and Associates Certified Public Accountants, A.C. *Marietta, Ohio*



Dave Yost • Auditor of State

SANDUSKY COUNTY-SENECA COUNTY- CITY OF TIFFIN PORT AUTHORITY

SENECA COUNTY

CLERK'S CERTIFICATION This is a true and correct copy of the report which is required to be filed in the Office of the Auditor of State pursuant to Section 117.26, Revised Code, and which is filed in Columbus, Ohio.

Susan Babbrtt

CLERK OF THE BUREAU

CERTIFIED AUGUST, 30 2018

> 88 East Broad Street, Fourth Floor, Columbus, Ohio 43215-3506 Phone: 614-466-4514 or 800-282-0370 Fax: 614-466-4490 www.ohioauditor.gov